
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 19 January 2016 at 7.30pm 
Council Chamber - Civic Centre 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any matters on 

the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 2 - 4) 
 
 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2015. 

 
4. Matters Arising   
 
5. Written Questions and Petitions   
 
6. Committee Work Plan  (Page 5) 
 
7. Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle MOT and 

Compliance Testing Arrangements  (Pages 6 - 10) 
 
8. References from Other Committees   
 
 Any references arising from meetings held after the publication of this 

agenda will be circulated separately. 
 

9. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 

considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to 
be specified in the minutes. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 

 

17 November 2015 7.30  - 8.19 pm 
 

PRESENT 

 

Committee Members 
Councillor John Strachan (Vice-Chair, in the Chair) 
Councillor Ian Beckett 
Councillor Nick Churchill 
Councillor Karen Clempner 
Councillor Danny Purton 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 

 
Officers 

Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager 
Denise Westwood, Junior Legal Assistant 
David Taylor, Principal Environmental Health Officer 
Lisa Purse, Corporate and Governance Support Officer 
 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop 
Councillor Tony Hall 
Councillor Bill Pryor 
 
 
19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

20. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2015 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

21. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

22. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  

 
None. 
 

23. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received its proposed Work Plan for the current municipal 
year. 

2

Agenda Item 3



Officers asked the Committee to note that the unallocated items are 
awaiting guidance and/or legislation with the exception of Substantive 
Review of Gambling Act Licensing Policy Statement which would be 
considered by Officers and an update on when a revised policy is 
expected to be produced would be provided at the next meeting of the 
Committee. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
a) the Work Plan is noted. 

 
b) an update on when a revised policy would be produced is to be 

provided at the January 2016 meeting of the Committee. 
 

24. STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY - OUTCOME OF 

CONSULTATION  

 
The Committee received a report on the proposed Statement of Licensing 
Policy under Gambling Act 2005 which explained that following the report 
to Committee in July 2015 the Council had conducted a consultation.  The 
responses received require no amendments to the draft statement of 
Licensing Policy and it therefore recommended that the unchanged policy 
is re-adopted. 
 
The Committee discussed possible gambling problems in Harlow and the 
people that gambling problems may affect currently and in the future.  
Officers advised that the Council’s Scrutiny Committee had asked for a 
review of fixed odds betting terminals and that some of these issues would 
be considered as part of that review. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 

a) the Committee RECOMMENDS to Full Council adoption of the 
draft Statement of Licensing Policy, attached as Appendix 2 of 
the report.  

 
b) a future meeting of the Committee receive a report considering 

the implications for gambling licensing policy of revised 
Guidance to Local Authorities from the Gambling Commission. 

 
25. FOOD SAFETY ACT 1990 SERVICE PLAN 2015/2016  

 
The Committee received a report that detailed the Council’s statutory duty 
to enforce the Food Safety Act 1990. 
 
The Committee discussed the Food Standards Agency national star rating 
scheme and possible ways to champion Harlow’s 5 star food 
establishments .  Officers confirmed that there currently is a link from the 
Council’s website to the national star rating scheme.  

 

3



RESOLVED that the Food Safety Act 1990 Service Plan 
2015/2016, attached as Appendix 1 of the report is approved. 

 
26. OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED FEES AND CHARGES FOR PRIVATE 

HIRE LICENCES  

 
The Committee received a report on the proposed private hire and 
hackney carriage fees following them being advertised in a local 
newspaper in accordance with statutory requirements and recommended 
no changes to its previous recommendation to Council on 24 September 
2015. 
 
A discussion was had regarding resources spent processing applications 
and how this is reflected in the charges.    
 

RESOLVED that: 
 

a) the Committee considered representations dated 9 October 
2015 received from the Harlow Private Hire Committee, 
attached as Appendix A. 

 
b) the Committee agreed that the outcomes of the consultation 

requires no changes to its previous recommendation to Council, 
which was approved by Council on 24 September 2015. 

 
27. UBER MOBILE DEVICE BASED PRIVATE HIRE BOOKING  

 
The Committee received a report and briefing on UBER mobile device 
based private hire booking. 
 
The Committee discussed issues concerning public safety and business 
operation. 

 

RESOLVED that the Committee receive a further report if the 
Council receives a licensing application from Uber or a similar 
business. 

 
28. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

29. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 

  
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 

4



LICENSING COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2015/16       
 

   

22 March 2016  

o Public Space Protection Orders Michael Pitt 
 

Unallocated Items  

o  Quarterly Reporting of NHS Statistical Data   
(Min5,7/7/15- – to update  the first Committee 
meeting of 2016/17 on the re-establishment of links 
with Essex County Council.)  

 

Michael Pitt 

o  Update the Street Trading Licensing Policy  
         to Take Account of Revised Legislation  
         (Awaiting changes to the legislation) 
         

Michael Pitt 
 
 

o  Review of the Policy for Charity Collections 
(subject to publication of government guidance         
25, 12/11/13)  

Michael Pitt 
 
 

o  Substantive Review of Gambling Act 
Licensing Policy Statement                    
(subject to publication of revised Gambling 
Commission guidance) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 
 

Standing Items  

o Licensing Sub-Committee Decisions 
(Annual report to first meeting in the municipal year 
6,9/7/13) 

Michael Pitt 
 
 

 

5

Agenda Item 6



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 19JANUARY 2016 
 

TITLE: REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE MOT AND 
COMPLIANCE TESTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

MICHAEL PITT, ENVIRONMENT AND 
LICENSING MANAGER (01279) 446114 
 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:  DAVID TAYLOR, PRINCIPAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER (01279) 
446148 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The current approach to MOT and Compliance testing for Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Vehicle Licensingbe maintained until re-procurement is 
required. 

  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 permit local authorities to require 
Hackney Carriage and private hire vehicles to be licenced. 
 

2. Before a licence is granted or renewed, the Authority mustsatisfy itself that 
the vehicle is in a safe and suitable condition to convey members of the 
public. This is done by means of an MOT and compliance test. 
 

3. Currently one MOT test station is contracted to carry out both the MOT and 
compliance test by appointment, generally at the same time. Vehicles 
meeting the standard are certified by the test station and the proprietor is 
issued with the licence at the Council offices on the same day. 
 

4. At its meeting of 24 March 2015 the Licensing Committee considered various 
options for compliance testing arrangements and resolved to appoint one 
nominated garage for MOT and Compliance testing. The Committee also 
resolved to receive a report reviewing the arrangements in January 2016. 
 

5. A single test station was appointed by competitive tender in accord with the 
Council’s procurement policy. The procurement process resulted in a change 
of service provider. The current report reviews the suitability of the 
arrangements in place. 
 

6

Agenda Item 7



 
REVIEW 

6. The Principal Environmental Health Officer leading the Licensing Team has 
carried out a review of the suitability of the arrangements currently in place. 
This is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

7. In summary the findings of the review are that the contractor has performed 
well in delivering the contract; that arrangements meet the Council’s needs 
effectively providing reliable and consistent inspections; and that feedback 
from representatives of the licensed trades is positive. 

 
PROPOSALS 
 
8. The current arrangements were approved by Licensing Committee from 

among the options presented on the basis that testing could be coordinated 
with arrangements for issue of licences by the Council; that testing would be 
to a consistent standard; and that nominating one testing station would 
provide incentive to the contractor. A procurement process in accord with 
relevant legislation and Council policy was undertaken. 
 

9. The procurement process attracted a healthy interest permitting the Council 
to select the best from several viable bids. The Council has procured a 
contract for twelve months with an option to extend for a further 36 months. A 
further procurement exercise would be required for services after April 2018, 
providing an opportunity to re-examine and, if appropriate update, contract 
requirements. 
 

10. The review demonstrates that service both to the Council and to the licensed 
trades is good and that the current arrangements meet the Council’s needs. 
 

11. It is therefore proposed that the current arrangements, whereby vehicles are 
inspected for MOT and compliance at one garage nominated by the Council, 
continue until re-procurement is required. 

7



IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (includes Sustainability) 

Contained in the body of the report. 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
There are no financial implications of the recommendation contained within the 
report. 
Author: John Dyson, Principal Finance Manager for Simon Freeman, Head of 
Finance  
 
Housing 

None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

None specific 

Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
The recommendation is to maintain the status quo at this time, a proper 
procurement process was undertaken, therefore at this time there are no 
specificimplications. 
Author: Amanda Julian, Legal Service Manager, for Brian Keane, Head of 
Governance 

 

 
Background Papers 
[These are papers referred to in the preparation of the report that are not 
attached as appendices but that are available for public or Councillor study.] 
 
None. 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
MOT        Statutory test of vehicle safety, roadworthiness and exhaust emissions 
                named for the (then) Ministry of Transport 
 
 

8



   Appendix 1 
 
REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE MOT AND 
COMPLIANCE TESTING 
 
Background Members of the Committee will recall that the Council procured services to 
undertake MOT and Compliance testing for Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles from April 2015. 
The contract was awarded to Mr Unique at Wych Elm, Harlow and commenced on 25 April 
2015. 
 
MOT and Compliance Testing MOT and compliance tests are undertaken to ensure that 
taxi and private hire vehicles are safe and presentable.  Compliance tests are undertaken 
annually at the same time as the MOT and allow the examiner to check a range of items 
based on Councilconditions for licensed vehicles.  More frequent compliance tests are 
undertaken on private hire vehicles that have covered high mileages and on Hackney 
Carriages over 12 years old.  
 
Test Numbers During the first 8 months of the contract, Mr Unique has undertaken 270 
MOT and/or compliance tests.  Of these tests, 46 vehicles failed.  On each occasion the 
garage has notified the Councilthat the vehicle had failed and the vehicle was subsequently 
suspended until repaired.  This system appears to be working well.   
 
Enforcement Sessions In addition to periodic testing, the contract makes provision for the 
Council to undertake 3 enforcement sessions within each 12 month period.  This enables the 
Council to conduct vehicle enforcement activities ‘out of hours’ where vehicles may be 
inspected under controlled conditions.  In the 8 months to December 2015 the Licensing 
Team undertook 2 enforcement sessions.  The first of these began at 10pm and concluded 
at 3am enabling the Licensing Team to assess vehicles that may be routinely driven at night 
when Licensing Officers are not routinely available.  The second session was conducted 
during normal office hours.  On both occasions the garage was closed to the public and 
dedicated solely for the inspection of Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles.  Council staff and 
VOSA qualified inspectors worked together to inspect the vehicles at a rate of 4/hour and 
process the necessary paperwork.  During these 2 sessions, some 30 vehicles were 
thoroughly examined which revealed some potentially dangerous defects.  Defective 
vehicles were immediately suspended until they were repaired.  The value of these sessions 
cannot be overstated, they serve to help the Council identify defective vehicles and they 
send a clear message to vehicle proprietors and operators that they must maintain their 
vehicles to an acceptable standard.  A third enforcement session will be conducted before 
25 April 2016.   
 
The Licensing Team’sExperienceThe team has reviewed the operation of the contract 
thus far and has concluded that the arrangements are working correctly for the following 
reasons; 

• The team has confidence in the judgement of the garage and MOT inspectors , 

• The facilities are spacious and suitable for both MOT’s and repairs, 

• Communications between the garage and Council have been excellent, 

• The garage manager is accommodating and responsive, 

• The Council has received very few complaints; equivalent to 0.74% 

• The trade associations are satisfied with the service, 

• Out of hours enforcement activities have been undertaken without fuss and in a 
spirit of co-operation. 

 
Harlow Private Hire Association The Association has indicated that they are satisfied with 
the service provided by Mr Unique and are not aware of any recent complaints.  Association 

9



representatives added that their members generally consider that the new arrangements 
represent an improvement on earlier arrangements. 
 
Hackney Carriage Trade Representatives of the Hackney Carriage trade have advised the 
Council that their members have not reported any concerns and that the general feedback 
has been very positive.   
 
Contractual Arrangements The contract duration was for an initial period of 12 months with 
an option to extend for a further 36 months.  The current agreement will expire on 2 April 
2016 unless renewed. 

10


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Committee Work Plan
	7 Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle MOT and Compliance Testing Arrangements
	test station review appendix 1


